
A
G

EN
D

A
 

O
U

TSTA
N

D
IN

G
 

A
C

TIO
N

S
STR

A
TEG

IC
 

M
A

T
TER

S
C

A
SE R

EP
O

R
TS 

FR
O

M
 P

SC

 

 

 
 

 

MINUTES Meeting date: Monday 3 November 2025 

 
IN ATTENDANCE ONLINE  
Members: 

• Suzanne Vestri (Convener) 

• Malcolm Bell 

• Helen Donaldson 

• Morag Ferguson 

• Lezley Stewart 

Executive Team: 

• Lorna Johnston (Executive Director) 

• Richard Wilson (Case Manager)  

ITEM CONTENT ACTION 

STANDING ITEMS 

1.  APOLOGIES 
No apologies were received. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
  

2.  MATTERS ARISING 
Members noted all matters arising from the last meeting, on 30 September 2025, were complete. 

 
 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 

3.  DRAFT MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
Members reviewed and approved the minute of the meeting on 30 September 2025.  
 

 
 

STRATEGIC MATTERS 

4.  PROMOTING THE ETHICAL STANDARDS FRAMEWORK AND UPDATE ON OUTREACH WORK 
Members noted that since their last meeting: 

• The Standards Commission had held its annual workshop for Monitoring Officers on 27 
October 2025. 

• The Case Manager had attended the forum organised by COSLA on Civility in Public Life on 
28 October 2025. 

 
Members further noted that: 

• The Standards Commission had been asked to appear before the Local Government, 
Housing and Planning Committee meeting on 11 November 2025 to give evidence on the 
annual report. The Executive Director and Convener were unavailable, so the Executive 
Team had asked the Committee Clerk to check whether the Standards Commission could 
instead give evidence at the Committee’s meeting on 25 November 2025. 

• The Executive Team had been asked to present at the SOLAR Conference on 14 November 
2025. As the Executive Director is on leave, the Case Manager will cover the event. Members 
noted that a presentation has been prepared. 

• The Executive Director and Case Manager were due to present on the Councillors’ Code to 
the Scottish Conservative Councillors Association on 18 November 2025. Members noted 
that a presentation has been prepared. 

• The Standards Commission has been asked to present online on the Councillors’ Code to 
elected members of Dumfries and Galloway Council on 26 November 2025.  

• The Executive Team has been asked to present on how the Codes of Conduct support good 
governance at the NHS Board Secretaries annual conference on 11 December 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

• Members are due to have their annual meeting with the Scottish Parliamentary Corporate 
Body on 15 January 2026. 

• The Standards Commission has arranged to present at joint webinars with the Improvement 
Service on 15 and 29 January 2026. These will cover distinguishing between strategic and 
operational matters, and gifts and hospitality, respectively. Members noted Mr Bell could 
was available to assist the Executive Director with the webinar on 29 January 2026. 
 

5.  SCHEME OF DELEGATION   
Members undertook their scheduled triennial review of the Standards Commission’s Scheme of 
Delegation, which outlines the delegated decision-making powers for the Standards Commission, 
including ones made under statutory powers, and one in respect of governance and staffing 
matters, and the organisation’s Rules, policies and procedures. 
 
Members agreed some minor changes to reflect changes made to the Hearing Rules and the 
introduction of new human resources related policies (see item six below). Members asked the 
Executive Team to make the changes and publish the updated version on the website. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

6.  HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
Members noted the Human Resources Committee had met on 22 October 2025.  Members noted 
the draft minutes of the meeting and the content of a verbal report provided by the Committee 
Chair. 
 
In particular, Members noted that the Standards Commission adopts the SPCB’s Human 
Resources policies and procedures, which are reviewed and updated on a regular basis.  
Members noted the Committee recognised, nevertheless, that some of the policies referred to 
specific reporting lines and decision-making structures that would not apply to the Standards 
Commission. As such, the Committee had adopted a staff Code of Conduct, certain human 
resources related policies and an accompanying Staff Handbook of its own. The Committee noted 
all the proposed policies reflected the substantive content of their equivalent SPCB counterpart. 
 
Members noted that the Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct had been circulated to all staff, 
and that the Code had been published on the website. 
 

 
 

7.  APPEAL AGAINST DECISION ON LA/AC/3994 
Members noted that while the Standards Commission had been advised that the Respondent 
had lodged an appeal against both the decisions on breach and sanction made at the Hearing 
held on 5 August 2025, to date it had not been served. Members noted that Aberdeen Sheriff 
Court had indicated this was because the Sheriff Principal was retiring and the matter may have 
to be put on hold until her replacement was in post. 
 

 
 
 

8.  ACTIONS ARISING FROM MONITORING OFFICERS’ WORKSHOP 
Members noted that the Executive Team would collate notes taken at the workshop held on 27 
October 2025 and thereafter circulate by email any draft agreed actions, for approval. These 
would then be added to the Business Plan. 
 

 
 
Executive 
Team 

9.  GUIDANCE ON THE RELEVANCY OF EVIDENCE  
Members reviewed and approved proposed revisions suggested by the Executive Team to the 
Standards Commission’s Guidance on the Relevancy of Evidence. Members noted that the 
revisions were intended to provide greater clarity and guidance on the types of evidence and 
submissions that would not be considered relevant and admissible in terms of the decisions to 
be made at Hearings. 
 
Members asked the Executive Team to make the amendments, before circulating the revised 
version to the Ethical standards Commissioner (ESC) and publishing it on the website. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 



3 
 

CASES UPDATE 

10.  REPORTS FROM THE ESC & SECTION 14 LETTERS 
(a) LA/S/4221: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Stirling Councillor. 
 
(b) LA/C/4271: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Clackmannanshire Councillor. 

 

(c) LA/An/4295a: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on reports 
received from the ESC about two Angus Councillors. 
 

(d) LA/NA/4340: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a North Ayrshire Councillor. 

 

(e) LA/G/4223: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Glasgow City Councillor. 

 

(f) NPA/LLT/4337: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 

received from the ESC about a Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park Authority 

member. 

 

(g) LA/E/4130: Members noted that the ESC had sent draft breach reports to two City of 
Edinburgh Councillors under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act. 
2000. 

 

(h) LA/G/4139: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a Glasgow City 
Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act. 2000. 

 

(i) LA/G/4216: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a Glasgow City 
Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act. 2000. 
 
 

 

11.  CASES 
(a) LA/AB/4081: Members noted that a Hearing was held online on 7 October 2025. The 
Respondent was found not to have breached the Councillors’ Code. 

 

(b) LA/AB/4147: Members noted that a Hearing was held online on 23 October 2025.  The 
Respondent was found to have breached the Code and was suspended for one month. 

 

(c) LA/H/4028: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place online on 4 
November 2025. 

 

(d) LA/DG/4304: Members noted a three-month interim suspension had been imposed on a 
Dumfries and Galloway Councillor while the ESC was investigating complaints about his alleged 
conduct. 

 

(e) LA/G/4115: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 20 November 
2025 in Glasgow City Chambers. 

 

(f) LA/G/4203: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 2 December 2025 
in Glasgow City Chambers. 

 

(g) NPA/LLT/4184: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 10 February 
2026 at Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park Authority’s Headquarters in Balloch. 

 

 



4 
 

 

(h) LA/DG/4041: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 3 February 2026. 
The venue is to be confirmed. 
 

12.  INVESTIGATIONS EXCEEDING 3 MONTHS – INTERIM REPORTS 
(a) NPA/LLT/4230: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park Authority 
member had taken more than six months to investigate. 

 
(b) LA/An/4295: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about three Angus Councillors had taken more than three months 
to investigate. 

 

(c) LA/Fa/4317: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Falkirk Councillor had taken more than three months to 
investigate. 

 

(d) LA/SA/4134, 4220 and 4222: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC 
advising that an investigation into a complaint about three South Ayrshire Councillors had taken 
more than six months to investigate. 

 

(e) LA/DG/4304:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Dumfries and Galloway Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 
 

 
 
 
 

13.  FEEDBACK INCLUDING ANY HEARINGS SURVEY RESPONSES 
(a) Members noted the feedback received on the training event on the Model Code for Members 
of Clackmannanshire and Stirling Integration Joint Board on 24 September 2025. 
 

 
 

14.  NOTABLE CASES FROM OTHER JURISDICTIONS 

Not applicable. 

 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

15.  ANY EMERGING RISKS  
None identified. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT SCS MEETING 
Members agreed to advise the Executive Director of any items to be included in the agenda for 
discuss at the next meeting. 

 
 
 
Executive 
Team 
 
 

16.  2025/26 DIARY DATES AND WORKPLAN 
Members noted the diary dates and ongoing workplan.  
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
Members noted that the next meeting of the Standards Commission was scheduled to take place 
in the Scottish Parliament on Monday, 8 December 2025.  
 

 
 
 


